TO:

Public Document Pack

4

=

>

o

0

£

=

+

z :

2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

NOTICE
OF
MEETING

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 17TH OCTOBER, 2018
At 7.00 pm
in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL WINDSOR

MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS DR LILLY EVANS (CHAIRMAN), CHRISTINE BATESON (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), MICHAEL AIREY, DAVID HILTON, JOHN LENTON, SAYONARA LUXTON,
JULIAN SHARPE, LYNDA YONG AND MALCOLM BEER

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS JOHN BOWDEN, NICOLA PRYER, EILEEN QUICK, JACK RANKIN,
WESLEY RICHARDS, SAMANTHA RAYNER, JOHN STORY, LYNNE JONES AND
COLIN RAYNER

Karen Shepherd — Service Lead - Democratic Services - Issued: Tuesday, 9 October 2018

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell 01628 796319

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Congregate outside and do not
re-enter the building until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings — The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on September 19t 2018.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing
the Planning Applications Public Access Module at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring Reports.

83 -84



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed
which has not been fully discharged.
e Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
e Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority,
and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to
impartially consider only relevant issues.

DECLARING INTERESTS

If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or
Prejudicial Interest. If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the
item but must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body
determining the issue. You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote,
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillors Christine Bateson, David Hilton, John Lenton, Sayonara
Luxton, Julian Sharpe, Lynda Yong and Malcolm Beer

Officers: Andy Carswell, Victoria Gibson, Jo Richards and Sean O'Connor

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

In the absence of the Chairman and Vice Chairman, a vote was carried out to appoint a
Chairman for the duration of the meeting. Clir Hilton nominated Clir Bateson for the role of
Chairman; this was seconded by ClIr Luxton and unanimously agreed by Members.

Apologies were received from Clirs Evans, Rayner and Airey. ClIr Luxton was attending as a
substitute.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Sharpe — Declared a personal interest as his wife was chairman of Sunninghill and Ascot
Parish Council. He stated however that he had no dealings with the Parish Council.

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on August 22" 2018
be approved as an accurate record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

NB: Items subject to a Panel update are marked with an asterisk.

*17/03850 Jayflex Construction Ltd: Variation of condition 40 (under Section 73) to allow
for continued extraction, infilling and restoration of site for the extraction of sand
and gravel and restoration to agricultural land using imported inert fill, creation
of a site access road onto Horton Road, erection of a gravel processing plant,
site offices and facilities, and formation of settlement ponds approved under
(07/00590) (allowed on appeal) at Land East of Horton Road, Horton, Slough —
THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to authorise the Head of Planning to
APPROVE planning permission subject to the satisfactory completion of
a Deed of Variation and subject to the conditions listed in Section 9 of the
Officer report, with the additional Condition and amendment to Condition
38 in the Panel Update, and with Condition 20 to be amended to state
“shall not exceed 200,000t”. It was also agreed that the concerns raised
by the Parish Council would be relayed to Planning.

The Panel was addressed by Janet Crame on behalf of Horton Parish Council, and Brendan
O’Reilly on behalf of the applicant.

18/01251 Construction of a detached dwelling with new access, landscaping and
associated works at The Big Cedar, London Road, Sunningdale, Ascot SL5 0JL
— THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to defer the item to the next
meeting in order for Members to attend a site visit.

5



The Panel was addressed by Ronald Watson, objector; Julia Chester, on behalf of SPAE;
Michael Burn, on behalf of Sunningdale Parish Council; and Michael Lee, the agent.

18/02000 Kebbell Homes Ltd: Variation of condition 14 (rooflights) 15 (approved plans)
under (Section 73) of application 17/01066/VAR to amend rooflights and
substitute approved drawing numbers FD16-1361-P135A and FD16-1361-
P140A with drawing numbers FD16-1361-P135B and FD16-1361-P140B for
the redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3 bedroom apartments under
application 15/03090 (allowed on appeal) at Former The Little House, Charters
Road, Sunningdale, Ascot SL5 9QF — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY
to defer the item to the next meeting in order for Members to attend a site
visit.

The Panel was addressed by Paul Mackey, objector, and Michael Burn, on behalf of
Sunningdale Parish Council.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

Members noted the contents of the report.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 8.23 pm

CHAIRMAN. ... ...,



Agenda Item 4
RoYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Rural Panel

17th October 2018

INDEX

APP = Approval

CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use

DD = Defer and Delegate

DLA = Defer Legal Agreement

PERM = Permit

PNR = Prior Approval Not Required

REF = Refusal

WA = Would Have Approved

WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 18/01251/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 9

Location: The Big Cedar London Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0JL

Proposal: Construction of a detached dwelling with new access, landscaping and associated works
Applicant: Member Call-in:  Clir Bateson Expiry Date: 28 August 2018
Item No. 2 Application No. 18/01464/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 26

Location: Mile Stones Queens Hill Rise Ascot SL5 7DP

Proposal: Construction of three blocks comprising 22 no. apartments with basement parking and new access from
London Road following demolition of existing dwellinghouse and outbuildings.

Applicant:  Searchfield Homes Member Call-in:  Clit Hilton Expiry Date: 19 October 2018
Limited
Item No. 3 Application No. 18/01673/0UT Recommendation REF Page No. 48

Location: Land To The Rear of 4 And 5 Claver Drive Ascot

Proposal: Outline application for access, layout and scale to be considered at this stage with all other matters to be
reserved for the construction of x14 apartments with associated access and landscaping works.

Applicant:  Mr Collett Member Call-in: Clir Sharpe Expiry Date: 5 September 2018

Item No. 4 Application No. 18/02000/VAR Recommendation DD Page No. 67

Location: Former The Little House Charters Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9QF

AGLIST



Proposal: Variation of condition 14 (rooflights) 15 (approved plans) under (Section 73) of application 17/01066/VAR to
amend rooflights and substitute approved drawing numbers FD16-1361-P135A and FD16-1361-P140A with
drawing numbers FD16-1361-P135B and FD16-1361-P140B for the redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3
bedroom apartments under application 15/03090 (allowed on appeal).

Applicant: Kebbell Homes Ltd Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 21 September 2018

AGLIST 8



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

17 October 2018 ltem: 1

Application 18/01251/FULL

No.:

Location: The Big Cedar London Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0JL

Proposal: Construction of a detached dwelling with new access, landscaping and associated
works

Applicant:

Agent: Mr Douglas Bond

Parish/Ward:  Sunningdale Parish/Sunningdale Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Jo Richards on 01628 682955 or at
jo.richards@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This application has been deferred from the previous Windsor Rural Development Management
Panel on the 19" September 2018 to allow for a members site visit which took place on 26™
September 2018. The site visit was conducted from the application site itself and neighbouring
properties, Studio Cottage and 15 Broomfield Court. The applicant has also submitted a drawing
to show that a 25 degree light angle drawn from the centre of the side facing kitchen window of
15 Broomfield Court would not be breached by the development.

1.2 Permission is sought for a detached dwellinghouse to be sited to the south-west of The Big
Cedar and fronting London Road. The proposal is considered acceptable with regards to the
impact on the character of the area, having particular regard to the Council's Townscape
Assessment and the Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan. There would be
no detrimental impact to neighbouring properties as a result of the proposal and the development
is supported by the Council’s Arboriculturist subject to conditions and a financial contribution
towards replacement trees.

1.3 Following on The Town and Country Planning (Pre-commencement Conditions) Regulations
2018, some of the recommended conditions have been re-worded to ensure that they comply
with these new regulations which came into force on 1% October 2018.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Head of Planning:

To grant planning permission on the satisfactory completion a section 111 agreement
being secured for SAMM/SANG payments and a financial contribution towards
replacement trees and with the conditions listed in Section 10 of this report.

To refuse planning permission if an undertaking to secure the required section 111
agreement is not satisfactorily progressed as the proposed development would not
provide mitigation for the likely impacts on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area and would cause unacceptable harm to trees important to the visual amenities of
the area as set out in this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Bateson as local residents are concerned about the bulk, height
and that the development would overlook their properties.




3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

51

5.2

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprises part of the residential curtilage of The Big Cedar, London Road,
Sunningdale. The site falls within Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan
(2011-2026) and is identified in the Townscape Assessment Zone as falling within a ‘Leafy
residential suburb’.

The Townscape Assessment states that ‘Leafy Residential Suburbs are low density residential
suburbs comprising large detached houses in spacious irregular well treed plots, typically dating
from the early 20th Century to the present day. The type is defined by large properties set well
back from the road, behind dense/high ornamental hedges with gravel drives and gates. These
suburbs are neat, manicured and managed, with a private character including private roads and
gated communities. Some distinctive building styles are evident including early 20th Century ‘Arts
and Crafts’ architecture, although larger, more modern properties are also present'.

The existing property, The Big Cedar, is a large, detached bungalow set within a spacious plot. It
is set back from the street scene, where it is obscured by mature trees and other vegetation
which exist along its front boundary. The surrounding area comprises a mix of residential
properties. On the opposite side of London Road, and to the north-east and to the rear,
surrounding properties are predominantly detached. To the south-west lies Broomfield Park
which comprises generally smaller properties including maisonettes. The majority of properties in
the area are set back from the street scene allowing for the growth and provision of trees and
shrubbery, which ultimately creates the areas leafy, wooded, character. The site also lies within
5km of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area and is just outside of the Green Belt.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Planning permission is sought for a single detached dwellinghouse to be sited to the east of the
existing dwellinghouse fronting London Road. Access to the property would be taken from
London Road. This application follows a previous similar application ref: 17/01974/FUL which
was withdrawn as the Council had concerns over the scale of the dwellinghouse. The current
proposal is for a dwellinghouse that has been reduced in scale.

Ref. Description Decision

17/01974/FULL Proposed erection of a detached dwelling with | Withdrawn - 11.08.2017
associated access, landscaping and
associated works.

02/82381/0UT Erection of gatehouse and detached dwelling | Refused - 24.10.2002
with ancillary parking facilities
99/78853/FULL Relocation of vehicular access Approved - 27.01.2000

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections

5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

8. Promoting healthy and safe communities

11. Making efficient use of land

12. Achieving well-designed places

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Local Plan Compliance

Policy
Design in keeping with character of area DG1 Yes

10




Acceptable impact on appearance of area DG1, H10 H11 Yes

Acceptable impact when viewed from nearby H11 Yes
occupiers
Maintains acceptable level of privacy for nearby H11 Yes
residents
Maintains acceptable level of daylight and H11 Yes
sunlight for nearby occupiers
Sufficient parking space available P4 Yes
NP/EN2 Yes
NP/EN3,
NP/EN4,
Complies with relevant polices of the Ascot, “E;Bg;
Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood NP/DG3.
Plan. NP/DG4,
NP/DGS5,
NP/H2,
NP/T1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3
of area
Provision of high quality housing HO2, HO5
Natural Environment NR2, EP2, EP3, EP4
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1
Transport and parking IF2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more details in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP2,
SP3, HO2, HO5, EP2, EP3, EP4, IF1 and IF2 in this case. Lesser weight should be accorded to
Borough Local Plan Submission Version policy NR2 due to the extent and nature of objections
raised to it by representations on the Borough Local Plan Submission Version. The above
application is considered to comply with the relevant policies listed within the Development Plan
and those Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which significant weight is to be
accorded.

This document can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

11




5.3

54

6.1

6.2

6.3

Supplementary planning documents
Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:
e Thames Basin Heaths SPA SPD

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

o RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
o RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
[ Impact on the Character of the Area

ii Impact on Neighbouring Occupiers

Iii Parking/Highways
iV Trees
% Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area

Impact on the Character of the Area

Policy DG1 states that the Borough Council will have regard to the following guidelines inter alia
when assessing new development proposals: 3) The design of new buildings should be
compatible with the established street facade having regard to the scale, height and building lines
of adjacent properties, special attention should be given to the ‘roof-scape’ of buildings,
illustrations showing the relationship between new and old will be required at the application
stage; 11) Harm should not be caused to the character of the surrounding area through
development which is cramped, or which results in the loss of important features which contribute
to that character. Policy H10 states that new residential development schemes will be required to
display high standards of design and landscaping in order to create attractive, safe and diverse
residential areas and, where possible, to enhance the existing environment. Policy H11 states
that in established residential areas, planning permission will not be granted for schemes which
introduce a scale or density of new development which would be incompatible with or cause
damage to the character and amenity of the area.

The Royal Borough's Townscape Assessment was approved in August 2010 and defines broad
areas of townscape. It is used to define character of an area and is used in conjunction with the
Local Plan Policies (particularly DG1, H11l). The Townscape Assessment (including the
designation ‘Leafy Residential Suburbs) also underpins the policies in the adopted Ascot,
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan (NP/DG1, NP/DG2). The Neigbourhood Plan
was formally adopted in April 2014.The development site falls within an area characterised as
‘Leafy residential suburbs’, in both Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan

12



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

(2011-2026) and The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Council's Townscape
Assessment (approved in August 2010).

Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/DG1 states: ‘Development proposals should respond positively to
the local townscape. Development proposals should use the RBWM Townscape Assessment
report, and specifically its sections “Key Characteristics” and “Description”, to inform the design
approach in a planning application. The extent to which this is demonstrated in the development
proposals should determine whether the proposal is in keeping with the character of an area.’ In
Townscape Assessment zones including leafy residential suburbs residential development
should comprise low or very low density developments of detached houses, unless it can be
satisfactorily demonstrated that other forms of development would retain the identified character
of the area. In the context of this policy, these houses are defined as being dwellings for
occupation typically by a single household, each house sitting on its own plot with a garden for its
exclusive use. This policy shall apply even in areas within these zones where other types of
dwellings may also exist.

Policies NPDG1 — NP/DG3 seek to ensure development proposals are compatible to surrounding
development within the Townscape area and within the area general. Various aspects of the
existing development should be respected including building line, plot widths and gaps of
separation. Development should also demonstrate good quality design and should take the
opportunity to enhance the local area.

The proposed plot for the new dwellinghouse would be materially smaller than that which remains
to serve The Big Cedar. Notwithstanding however, the proposed plot size is compatible with other
plot sizes in the vicinity, for example 2 Redwood Drive and Beaufort House to the rear. Indeed
the plot size would be larger than that immediately to the south-west which serves 4 maisonettes
in Broomfield Parl. As such, there is no objection to the proposed plot size.

The two-storey part of the dwellinghouse would be positioned centrally within the plot and would
respect the building line on this side of London Road, formed by the existing dwellinghouse, The
Big Cedar, and the maisonettes to the south-west. Sizable gaps would be retained in-between
the two-storey flank walls of the proposed dwelling and the boundaries of the plot such that the
proposal would not appear cramped and would maintain the spaciousness of development within
the street scene.

With regard to the scale and bulk of the dwellinghouse, its two-storey footprint would be similar
to the block of maisonettes to the south-west but significantly smaller than the footprint of The
Big Cedar which is a large sprawling bungalow. The overall footprint of the building is considered
compatible with the proposed plot size, with sufficient space remaining free from development to
serve as an amenity area. It should be noted that the proposed dwellinghouse is significantly
smaller than the previous scheme, ref: 17/01974/FULL.

The external appearance of the dwellinghouse, is grand in appearance and different to that of
the traditional bungalow and the Art Deco flats adjacent. Having said that these two existing
forms of development are different to one another in terms of their form and external appearance
and thus it is accepted that the proposed development does not necessarily need to mimic either
development. The Neighbourhood plan policies are clear however in that new development must
respect that which it would sit alongside. As can be deduced from the above, it is considered that
the footprint, height and scale of development is respectful, and the development conforms to
the building line. As such, it is considered that the proposed development could differ in its
external appearance to that of the immediate neighbouring properties, provided that it would not
appear prominent or incongruous in the street scene. To that end, amended plans have been
received which display a more subtle front elevation to the dwellinghouse and an overall
reduction in the number of windows on the property as a whole. Coupled with the retention of
mature trees and the financial contribution to secure replacement planting on the highway verge
along London Road it is considered that the external appearance of the dwellinghouse would be
appropriate in its setting. The materials to be used in the external elevations can be controlled by
condition.

13



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

Impact on Neighbouring Occupiers

Immediately to the rear of the site lies neighbouring dwellinghouse, Studio Cottage, which the
proposed dwellinghouse would back onto. Due to the irregular shape of the application site, part
of the rear elevation of the proposed dwellinghouse would directly face the side boundary of the
rear garden of Studio Cottage. The gap between the proposed dwellinghouse and Studio
Cottage would be approximately 20.5m, with the two buildings sitting at oblique angles with one
another. It is therefore considered that the proposed development would not result in any harmful
levels of overlooking into the neighbouring property. The proposed dwellinghouse would only be
a distance of approximately 9m from the garden of Studio Cottage and whilst this distance is
considered sufficient enough to ensure that the proposed dwelling would not appear obtrusive
when viewed from the neighbouring garden area, it is not considered sufficient enough to
illuminate any harmful levels of overlooking from habitable windows which directly face this
garden area. Amended plans have been received during the course of the application which
reduce the number of windows on the rear elevation and show that the rear facing first floor
windows would now serve only non-habitable rooms. Those two windows directly facing the
garden of Studio Cottage will be conditioned to be obscurely glazed and permanently fixed shut
(condition 10). As such, the proposal is not considered to be harmful to the residential amenities
of the occupiers of Studio Cottage.

Several objection letters have been received from Broomfield Court to the south-west relating to
overlooking and loss of light. The proposed dwellinghouse would be situated in line with these
neighbouring maisonettes with first floor non habitable windows facing the common boundary
and a gap of separation between the two-storey flank elevation of either building being a sizable
distance of 10.5m. The immediate neighbouring building in Broomfield Court comprises four
apartments, two on the ground floor and two on the first floor, each property containing front and
rear south facing windows. These front and rear facing windows would not be impacted upon by
the development because the development would be set largely in line with this building. There is
one ground floor window in the immediate neighbouring property which directly faces the
application site would be impacted upon by the development, however given the sizable gap of
10.5m away from the two storey part of the development and the fact that the application building
would be sited to the north-east of the neighbouring building any loss of light to this window
would not be unduly harmful. Noise arising from the single dwellinghouse to occupiers of
Broomfield Court would not be of such as level so as to cause significant harm to residential
amenity.

In terms of overlooking from the development into neighbouring garden of the immediate
neighbours on Broomfield Court, overlooking from front windows would be at oblique angles and
such an arrangement is typical of dwellinghouses in linear formation. As such, no objection is
raised in this regard.

Parking/Highways

The access arrangements and visibility comply with the Highway Authority’s standards. 4 parking
spaces are shown to serve the 5 bedroomed dwellinghouse, which more than meets the
Council’'s parking standards. As such, no objections are raised by the Highways Authority subject
to conditions relating to the construction of the access (condition 4), the submission of a
construction management plan (condition 5), parking and turning (condition 6), visibility splays
(condition 7), gates set-back from the highway (condition 8) and bonded surface access
(condition 9).

Impact on trees

As described above, the character of the area is that of a mature leafy suburb and the site
contains and is surrounded by mature trees many of which are covered by a TPO. In particular a
large Oak Tree lies in-between the existing and proposed dwellinghouse. The scheme has been
designed to ensure minimum harm to this tree. The dwellinghouse has been sited sufficiently far
enough away from this tree and its root protection area and the routing of services and utilities
would also avoid harm to the roots of this tree. Car parking has been positioned on the opposite
side of the site from this tree.

14



6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

7.1

Regarding impact on highway trees, the Tree Officer has raised concern regarding harm to 3
newly planted trees, that were planted to replace 3 three that were removed without permission.
The applicant will need to provide a commuted sum prior to development to the local authority to
ensure mitigation planting is carried out for the likely loss of the new plantings. The loss of the
trees outside the property and the subsequent new plantings will cause a detriment to the
character and feel of the area, the commuted sum value for 3 x new trees and 2 years
maintenance is £1,713 and will need to be paid to the local authority to further the work of
enhancing the character of the local urban landscape. Provided the trees are planted in close
proximity to the application site, it is considered that the harm resulting from the development
would be offset and as such, it is considered reasonable necessary and directly relevant to the
proposal in this case to secure the financial contribution through a legal agreement. The
applicant has agreed to this and the legal agreement is being drafted.

Ecology/Thames Basin Heaths

The Ecologist is satisfied with the proposal subject to conditions relating to a wildlife-sensitive
lighting scheme (condition 13) and biodiversity enhancements (condition 14). An informative will
also be added relating to the protection of breeding birds.

The Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (the SPA) was designated in 2005 to protect
and manage the ecological structure and function of the area to sustain the nationally important
breeding populations of three threatened bird species. The Council’s Thames Basin Heaths SPD
sets out the preferred approach to ensuring that new residential development provides adequate
mitigation, which for residential developments of between one and nine additional housing units
on sites located over 400 metres and up to 5 kilometres from the SPA, is based on a
combination of Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) and the provision of
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace(SANG). The application site is within this 0.4 - 5km
buffer zone around the SPA.

The Council has an adopted Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG), Allen’s Field.
Mitigation for the potential harm to the SPA must be secured through a Section 111 agreement to
be agreed prior to the determination of the planning application. The Section 111 has in draft
form and when secured permission can be granted.

Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will be
a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that
housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of
deliverable housing sites. Following the Regulation 19 consultation on the Submission Version of
the Local Plan, the Council formally submitted in January 2018. The Borough Local Plan sets out
a stepped housing trajectory over the plan period (2013-2033). As detailed in the supporting
Housing Land Availability Assessment a five year supply of deliverable housing sites can be
demonstrated against this proposed stepped trajectory.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The application is CIL liable and the relevant CIL forms have been submitted with the
application.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties

6 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

15



The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 4" June.

10 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. The application is almost identical to the previous one, albeit Sections 6.2 —
marginally smaller 6.9

2. The proposed dwelling is extremely large and is an overdevelopment | Sections 6.2 —
of the plot 6.9

3. The proposal would result in a loss of privacy to neighbouring Sections 6.11-
occupiers, loss of light and outlook and be overbearing 6.12

4. The proposed development is out of proportion with neighbouring Sections 6.2 —
properties 6.9
5. Contrary to Neighbourhood Plan policies Sections 6.2 —
6.9
6. Noise during construction and from the development itself from Sections 6.11-
vehicles and occupants 6.12

7. The development would not respect the character and appearance of | Sections 6.2 —
the surrounding area 6.9

8. The development would harm the category A Oak tree on site and Sections 6.15-
could result in post development pruning pressures 6.16

9. Trees have been felled illegally on site which has negatively impacted | Sections 6.2 —
upon wildlife and increased noise and pollution from the A30 6.9

10. | The development has too many windows Sections 6.2 —
6.9

11. | Increased traffic on the A30 Section 6.13

12. | What is the significance of the previous application for a new access Permission was

driveway approved for an
access in 1999
which was not
implemented.
The current
application is for
a new
dwellinghouse
with access
onto the London
Road.

13. | Inaccuracies on the planning statement and drawings The plans
stipulate that the
dwellinghouse
would have 5
bedrooms

14. | The Design and Access statement advises that the dwelling would The plans

have 10 bedrooms which conflicts with the plans stipulate that the
dwellinghouse
would have 5
bedrooms

15. | The Highways comments are inaccurate The Highways

comments are
based on the
plans which
show a5
bedroom
dwellinghouse

16




10.

16. | The new dwelling would put pressure on the current drainage Not a material
infrastructure planning
consideration

Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways The access arrangements, parking and turning comply with Section 6.13
Authority the Local Authorities standards. Therefore the Project Centre
offers no objection to the proposal subject to conditions and
informatives
Parish Strong objections to the application as summarised: See main body
Council Impact on category A oak tree. As the tree matures there will | of report

be considerable pressure to prune the tree.

Loss of light to neighbouring occupiers in Broomfield Court
Overlooking to Studio Cottage

The proposal is out of character with other properties in the
area

The proposal is contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan and
Townscape Assessment.

Tree Officer | No objection subject to conditions and financial contribution Noted
for replacement planting

SPAE Impact on neighbouring occupiers and overdevelopment of Sections 6.2 —
the site 6.12
Ecology In summary, the proposed works are considered unlikely to Noted

adversely affect any protected wildlife. Subject to the
recommended conditions, there are no objections to this
application on ecological grounds.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
o Appendix B — Plan and elevation drawings

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED REASONS

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

No development above slab level shall take place until details of the materials to be used on the
external surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1;

No development shall take place until a detailed plans showing the existing and proposed ground
levels of the site together with the slab and ridge levels of the proposed development relative to a
fixed datum point on adjoining land outside the application site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved levels.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Details are required prior to

17



10

11

12

commencement of development as the details to be approved will inform the initial construction.
Relevant Policy - Local Plan DG1.

The development shall not be occupied until the access has been constructed in accordance with
details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The access shall thereafter be retained.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5, DG1.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic and to ensure the protection
of important trees, matters that are fundamental to the development and which therefore must be
satisfied prior to commencement. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5 and N6.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space has been
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved drawing. The space
approved shall be kept available for parking and turning in association with the development.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving the highway in forward gear.
Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until the visibility splays shown on the approved
drawings have been provided. The areas within these splays shall be kept free of all obstructions
to visibility above a height of 0.6 metres from the surface of the carriageway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5.

Any gates provided shall open away from the highway and be set back a distance of at least 5
metres from the highway boundary or at least 7 meters from the nearside edge of the
carriageway of the adjoining highway.

Reason: To ensure that vehicles can be driven off the highway before the gates are opened, in
the interests of highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the access has been
surfaced with a bonded material across the entire width of the access for a distance of at least
five metres measured back from the highway boundary.

Reason: To avoid spillage of loose material onto the carriageway which could adversely affect
conditions of highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5.

The first floor window(s) serving the bathroom and en-suite facing the boundary of Studio
Cottage of the development hereby permitted shall be of a permanently fixed, non-opening
design and fitted with obscure glass and the window shall not be altered without the prior written
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers. Relevant Policies
- Local Plan H14.

No further window(s) shall be inserted at first floor level in the south-west or south-east
elevation(s) of the dwellinghouse hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers. Relevant Policies

- Local Plan H11.

Irrespective of the provisions of Classes A, B and E of part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no enlargement, improvement or any other

18



13

14

15

16

17

18

alteration (including the erection of any ancillary building within the curtilage) of or to any dwelling
house the subject of this permission shall be carried out without planning permission having first
been obtained from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The prominence of the site requires strict control over the form of any additional
development which may be proposed. Relevant Policies - Local Plan H11, DG1.

No exterior lighting is to be installed until details of the lighting scheme and how it will not
adversely impact upon wildlife have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall include the following figures and appendices:

-A layout plan with beam orientation

-A schedule of equipment

-Measures to avoid glare

-An isolux contour map showing light spillage to 1 lux both vertically and horizontally, and
ecologically-sensitive areas

-The approved lighting plan shall thereafter be implemented as agreed.

: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely affected by the proposed development in line with
Section 15 of the NPPF and emerging Policy NR3 of the Borough Local Plan.

Prior to the occupation of the site, details of biodiversity enhancements - to include bird and bat
boxes or bricks, gaps at the base of fences to allow mammals to traverse through the site, and
wildlife-friendly planting - are to be submitted and approved in writing by the Council. The
enhancement features shall thereafter be installed in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: To incorporate biodiversity in and around developments in accordance with paragraph
175 of the NPPF.

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and thereafter maintained until the
completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have
been permanently removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in
accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

Prior to the commencement of development details of the areas to be used for on site materials
storage, construction workers' parking, and for ancillary temporary building(s) including any
phasing of use such areas, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and the works shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that retained landscaping on the site is not damaged or destroyed during
construction, a matter that is fundamental to the development and must be satisfied prior to
commencement.. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

The development shall not be occupied until the hard and soft landscaping scheme has been
implemented within the first planting season following the substantial completion of the
development in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be retained in accordance with the
approved details. If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree or shrub
shown on the approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in
replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or
defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be
planted in the immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written
consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

19



1

Informatives

The Streetcare Services Manager at Tinkers Lane Depot Tinkers Lane Windsor SL4 4LR tel:
01628 796801 should be contacted for the approval of the access construction details and to
grant a licence before any work is carried out within the highway. A formal application should be
made allowing at least 4 weeks notice to obtain details of underground services on the
applicant's behalf.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act 1986, Part Il, Clause 9, which
enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway or grass
verge arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

Any incidental works affecting the adjoining highway shall be approved by, and a licence
obtained from the The Streetcare Services Manager at Tinkers Lane Depot Tinkers Lane
Windsor SL4 4LR tel: 01628 796801 at least 4 weeks before any development is due to
commence.

No builders materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the development should
be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction at any time.

20



Location Plan

Boundary Details

Application Site
Boundary Line

Ownership
Boundary Line

Casa _, Apple Tree

AN \A/}\'.

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. Al rights reserved. Licence number 100007327

21



Proposed site plan

NS

jom)

e 2e S




Proposed street scene

Boundary Line

Boundary Line

Broomfield Park

Proposed House

Big Cedar



Proposed elevations

-
I
I

ﬂm {
A |

!
1
Ll
. A

L I

Side (North East) Elevation

Front {North West) Elevation

24

Side (South West) Elevation

Rear (South East) Elevation



Proposed floor plans

UE|d J00|4 PUCORS

B\ Jooy

UE|d 4004 15414

25



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

17 October 2018 Item: 2
Application 18/01464/FULL
No.:
Location: Mile Stones Queens Hill Rise Ascot SL5 7DP
Proposal: Construction of three blocks comprising 22 no. apartments with basement parking

and new access from London Road following demolition of existing dwellinghouse
and outbuildings.

Applicant: Searchfield Homes Limited

Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson

Parish/Ward:  Sunninghill And Ascot Parish/Ascot And Cheapside Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Jo Richards on 01628 682955 or at
jo.richards@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The general form, design, layout, scale, massing and height of the proposed apartment buildings
and the extent of the new hard surfacing within the site would be out of character and result in an
erosion in the spacious character of this 'Villas in a Woodland Setting' townscape and represents
an overly dominant, intrusive and unsympathetic form of development.

1.2 Apartment block 3 would result in loss of privacy to the occupiers of the adjacent house to the north
‘Ballards’, by virtue of its height, scale, proximity and number of first and second floor windows and
second floor terrace.

1.3 The proposed access road and apartment buildings would encroach into the RPAs of several
protected trees within the site to their demise. The loss of these trees would be detrimental to the
sylvan character of the area, a key characteristic of the ‘Villas in a Woodland Setting’ area.

1.4 The application proposes to construct a new access to the site from London Road which raises
significant highway concerns due to the obstruction of traffic flow and visibility to and from the
proposed access point. The proposed means of access to the site is inadequate by reasons of its
location, alignment and visibility.

15 The proposal is for 22 units on a site of 1.20 hectares and therefore affordable housing should be
provided in line with local policy H3 and the NPPF paragraphs 63 and 64. No such provision has
been included within the proposals.

1.6 The applicants have failed to provide mitigation for harm to the SPA through the introduction of
new residential development.

1.7 The proposal has not been developed in accordance with a development brief that has allowed the
local community to engage in meaningful consultation as part of the design process prior to the
planning application being submitted.

1.8 The applicants have failed to provide sufficient information relating to surface water drainage and
flooding to satisfy the requirements of the Lead Local Flood Authority.

1.9 The applicants have failed to provide survey information relating to the presence of bats within the
site.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

26



The proposed development by reason of its general form, design, layout, scale, massing
and height of the proposed buildings and the extent of the new hard surfacing within the
site would be out of character and result in an erosion in the spacious character of this
"Villas in a Woodland Setting’ townscape and represents an overly dominant, intrusive,
unsympathetic form of development.

Apartment building 3 would have an unacceptable impact on the neighbouring property
to the north, Ballards, in terms of overlooking.

The proposal would result in an unacceptable impact on important trees within the site.
The loss of these trees would be harmful to the character of the area.

The proposed means of access to the site is inadequate by reasons of its location,
alignment and visibility to serve the proposed development.

No affordable housing has been proposed. 30% is required.

o0

Mitigation for the impact on the Thames Basin SPA has not been provided.

The proposal has not been developed in accordance with a development brief that has
allowed the local community to engage in meaningful consultation as part of the design
process prior to the planning application being submitted.

o

Insufficient information has been submitted with regards to surface water drainage.

©

Further surveys are required to assess the presence of bats. In the absence of such
survey information the proposal is insufficient to conclude that there would not be any
harm to bats.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

At the request Clir Hilton the application has been called to Panel irrespective of the
recommendation of the Head of Planning due to the objection by Sunninghill and Ascot Parish
Council on grounds of lack of public consultation, access, impact on character and trees, and
impact on residential amenity.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprises a single detached dwellinghouse in substantial grounds. The site
lies within a settlement area and within a Townscape Character Area defined as ‘Villas in a
Woodland Setting’ which is typified by very low density development comprising large houses set
in generous tree lined plots.

The main access to the site is currently via Queens Hill Rise, a private road accessed via a priority
junction onto Cheapside Road, which in turn has a priority junction onto London Road. There is a
secondary access via Queens Hill onto London Road. There is also a gated pedestrian access
directly onto London Road.

The site contains many matures trees along the site boundaries and within the central areas of the
site. These trees are covered by an Area TPO.

Other sites within Queens Hill Rise contain single detached dwellings, however it is noted that
apartment buildings exist on London Road.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of three blocks comprising 22 no. apartments. Block
1 is to be positioned in the south-west corner of the site containing 5 apartments, Block 2 positioned
in the north-west part of the site, the largest of the three blocks, containing 12 apartments and
Block 3 positioned in the north-east corner of the site containing 5 apartments.

Access is to be taken from London Road to the south of the site and the driveway will lead to a
central turning area with three secondary driveways to serve each apartment block. Parking will
primarily be provided within a basement area for each apartment block with 8 surface level visitor
spaces adjacent to the central turning area.




MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework Sections: - a material planning condition
1. Achieving sustainable development

2. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

3. Promoting healthy and safe communities

4. Achieving well-designed places

The Development Plan - Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Local Plan Compliance
Issue .
Policy
Design in keeping with character of area DG1 No
Acceptable impact on appearance of area DG1, H10 H11 No
Accep_table impact when viewed from nearby H10, H11 Yes
occupiers
Ma!ntalns acceptable level of privacy for nearby H10, H11 No
residents
Maintains acceptable level of daylight and Yes
. ; H10, H11
sunlight for nearby occupiers
Sufficient parking space available P4 Yes
Acceptable impact on the highway T5 No
Acceptable impact on trees important to the NG No
area
Mitigation for Thames Basin Heath Special T6, R3, IMP1 No
Acceptable impact on Public Rights of Way Yes
: . R14
such as public footpaths or bridleways
NP/EN1 No
NP/EN2,
NP/ENS3,
Complies with relevant polices of the Ascot, NP/EN4,
e . NP/H2,
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Proposed
Neighbourhood Plan NP/DG1,
' NP/DG2,
NP/DG3,
NP/DG5
NP/T1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version —a material consideration

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2, SP3
of area
Provision of high quality housing HO2, HO5
Natural Environment NR2, EP2, EP3, EP4
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1
Transport and parking IF2

28



53

6.1

6.2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been submitted
to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough Local Plan does
not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by publishing and
submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has formally confirmed
its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the emerging Borough Local
Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should accord relevant policies
and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications taking account of the extent
to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies. Therefore, the weight afforded to each
policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and type of representation to that policy. This
is addressed in more details in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP2, SP3,
HO2, HO5, EP2, EP3, EP4, IF1 and IF2 in this case. Lesser weight should be accorded to Borough
Local Plan Submission Version policy NR2 due to the extent and nature of objections raised to it
by representations on the Borough Local Plan Submission Version. The above application is
considered to comply with the relevant policies listed within the Development Plan and those
Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which significant weight is to be accorded.

This document can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Other Local Strategies or Publications —a material planning consideration
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

o RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
) RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
i Impact on the character of the area.
i Impact on neighbouring properties
il Highway and parking implications
iv Tree considerations
v Ecology and Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area
vi Other Material Considerations
Impact on the Character of the Area
The application site lies within a ‘Villas in a Woodland Setting’ area as defined by the Council's
Townscape Character Assessment, the qualities of which include very low density development,

large detached dwellings set in large spacious plots, and development which retains and enhances
the sylvan, leafy nature of the area. Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/DG1 reinforces these

29



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

requirements. Residential intensification in such areas is not unacceptable in principle, however
new development should adhere to the recommendations of the Townscape Character
Assessment and neighbourhood plan policies to ensure there is an acceptable impact on the
character of the area.

Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/H2.2 (Mix of Housing Types) advises that development proposals
for new dwellings will be expected to contribute to the aim of ensuring a balanced mix of housing
in the Plan area. Dwellings should be in size and type, in keeping with the size and type of dwellings
already prevalent in the surrounding area except where there is a demonstrable need for alternative
type or size of home. One of the material considerations in this case is that the proposal is for a
flatted development of 2-bed and 3-bed apartments whereas the existing site and those sites
immediately surrounding the application site contain large single detached dwellings. Having said
this, it is noted that the wider vicinity, including land within the ‘Villas in a Woodland Setting’ zone
comprises some flatted development as well as large detached dwellings, in particular there are
some sites fronting London Road approved in recent years that contain apartment buildings which
form part of the character of the area. As such, it is considered that it would be difficult to resist the
principle of flatted development within the application site. However the main characteristics of the
character zone should be adhered to as will be discussed below.

Policy NP/DG1 (Respecting the Townscape) states that development proposals should respond
positively to the Local Townscape and that the RBWM Townscape Assessment report should
inform the design approach in a planning application. Whilst it is accepted that the application site
could in principle hold a flatted development rather than single detached dwellings, other aspects
of the development should display characteristics identified with the Villas in a Woodland setting
such as spaciousness, irregularity (the appearance of a development that has been organically
evolved) and the retention of mature woodland. Indeed it could be argued that a flatted
development is acceptable in a Villas in a Woodland character zone, provided the spacious and
leafy character of the area is maintained. In order to maintain this character, it is considered that
the built development should not dominate the soft landscape character and woodland setting.

The proposal is laid out in three blocks of development, the two smaller blocks sitting either side of
the larger block spread around the south-west to north-east corner of the site in a curved formation.
The footprint of the blocks is significantly larger than the dwellinghouses surrounding the site and
indeed larger than other flatted developments fronting London Road. Integral to the layout of the
development is a new access off London Road which leads to a small roundabout with three spurs
leading to each block of apartments and their basement parking area. The layout has been
designed to fit around the mature trees contained within the site.

In this case, whilst the existing plot is one of the largest in the vicinity, the amount of land available
for development is constrained heavily by mature protected trees. The proposal seeks to fill the
majority of the land available for development with the sizable access road, roundabout and turning
heads and the apartment blocks themselves. Not only is the footprint of the apartment blocks
sizable, the bulk, height and massing of each block is significantly larger than the single dwellings
surrounding the plot. The height of block 2 being 12.5m and blocks 1 and 3 being marginally lower
at 11m. The bulk, mass and height of the proposed apartment blocks is very different to that of the
dwellinghouses immediately surrounding the site, and whilst the site contains mature screening
along most of the boundaries and the frontage, the development would still be visible to the
surroundings through gaps in the screening and during the winter months. Furthermore, the
development would result in the loss of some mature screening and potential harm to mature trees
(discussed in more detail below) which would further detract from the leafy character of the area
and accentuate the dominance of the built form.

Whilst the applicant maintains that the amount of hard-surfacing within the site would be limited
due to the provision of basement parking, a combination of the access road, central turning area
and spurs leading to the basement ramps is still considered to be excessive and uncharacteristic
of other developments in the immediate vicinity.

The design and external appearance of the apartment blocks is very grand and is considered to
appear prominent compared to the more subservient sized dwellings surrounding the application
site, most of which are of a traditional design. Whilst there is no in principle objection to a design

30



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

of this appearance, coupled with the bulk and mass of development, it is considered that the style
and appearance of the apartment blocks would be out of context compared to the surrounding
development, to the detriment of the locality.

Impact on Neighbouring Occupiers

It is considered that blocks 1 and 2 are sited significantly far enough away from neighbouring
properties and it is also noted that the boundary screening along the west and north-west parts of
the site are strong such that the impact on residential amenity, including overdominance loss of
light or loss of privacy, arising from this part of the development would not be harmful.

The most contentious relationship is that between block 3 and the neighbouring property to the
north, Ballards. The distance between the rear elevation of block 3 and the side elevation of
Ballards is 18.4m. With a distance of 14m between the rear elevation of block 3 and the common
boundary. Whilst such distances are normally sufficient to ensure an acceptable level of amenity
is retained for neighbouring occupiers, given the height of block 3 is 11m, the screening along this
boundary is limited and that the northern elevation of block 3 contains several first and second floor
habitable windows and a second floor roof terrace, the development is likely to give rise to actual
and perceived overlooking resulting in a loss of privacy to the garden area of this neighbouring

property.
Parking and Highways

The application proposes to stop up the existing vehicular access points to the site and construct
a new access onto London Road. London Road is a classified road and forms part of the borough’s
distributor road network. As stipulated within the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead’s
(RBWM) current highway design guide, maintaining a free flow of traffic on the distributor network
is essential in order to maintain network efficiency. Therefore, unless unavoidable, direct access
onto a distributor road is not permitted. The development is likely to result in additional trips
generated from the site, resulting in additional vehicles stopping on London Road thus, obstructing
the free flow of traffic. In addition, the location of the proposed access point raises significant
highway safety concerns, being located approximately 45m downstream of a crest in the highway.
This results in eastbound vehicles on London Road being within a blind spot for vehicles exiting
the site access. Finally, the proposed access point is likely to be shaded by overhanging trees
therefore, making visibility of the site access unclear for approaching vehicles. The construction of
a new access cannot be justified on traffic or road safety grounds and therefore the proposed
access point is unacceptable from a highways perspective.

With regard to parking, the site is located within an area of poor accessibility. The proposed
development consists of 6 x two-bedroom + 16 x three-bedroom flats, generating a demand for two
vehicular parking spaces per flat. The application proposes 44 underground parking spaces for
occupants of the flats and eight surface level spaces for visitors. The number of parking spaces
proposed is deemed acceptable as well as the proposed arrangement and sizing of parking bays.

Cycle parking/storage parking is deemed acceptable and further details are required regarding bin
storage.

Impact on Trees

The Arboriculturist has raised strong concerns regarding the impact on trees. It is accepted that
T47 (Cedar) is diseased and must be removed, however several elements of the development
including the driveway and apartment blocks 1 and 3 area are shown to encroach into the root
protection areas of other mature protected trees which are important features within the site and
the wider surroundings. Furthermore, T49 (Cedar), which has been shown to be retained, would
be subjected to a significant crown reduction of 8m, which would inevitably lead to the loss of this
tree — due to the age of this tree it is considered veteran, which means it would require a larger
RPA and greater protection.

On the whole it is considered that there will be a significant impact on the character and feel of the
site including the loss of significant trees. Furthermore, the amount of hardstanding in the RPA of

31



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

retained trees is likely to lead to the loss or deterioration of A and B class trees. As such, the
scheme fails to adequately secure the protection of important protected trees which contribute
positively to the character and appearance of the area. Furthermore, these concerns only
exacerbate the objections raised above regarding the overdominance of the built form and its
impact on the Villa in a Woodlands setting.

Ecology and Impact Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA)

The Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (the SPA) was designated in 2005 to protect
and manage the ecological structure and function of the area to sustain the nationally important
breeding populations of three threatened bird species. The application site is located within two
kilometres from the closest part of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA), which
is protected by European and national legislation. This imposes requirements on the Local
Planning Authority to protect this sensitive area of natural/semi-natural habitat. Although the
Council has an adopted Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) known as Allens’s Field,
this only has a limited amount of remaining capacity. However this capacity has already been
safeguarded for the delivery of submission allocated sites in the BLPSV. Unplanned development
using up this capacity could result in sustainably located plan—led developments being put at risk
of not being implemented in a timely manner or not at all. To avoid this arising, the Council (through
a decision of Cabinet in June 2018) agreed that unplanned development of over 10 dwellings would
not be able to rely on capacity at the Council’'s SANG at Allen’s Field and would need to find
alternative mitigation.

The Council is proactively progressing options to ensure that additional SANG comes forward
through to 2033 to assist in mitigating the impact of new windfall residential developments and
there are a number of opportunities currently available and the council is investigating them all in
consultation with Natural England. However, in the absence of available RBWM-provided SANG
capacity, developers must provide their own alternative mitigation in line with the requirements set
out by the Supplementary Planning Document Thames Basin Heaths SPA.(Part 1).This application
does not provide any form of acceptable mitigation in line with the Council’'s SPD Thames Basin
Health’'s SPA and therefore it has not been demonstrated that the proposed development would
not have a significant impact in combination with other plans and projects in the locality on the
SPA. The proposal is therefore contrary to advice within the NPPF and the RBWM Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area SPD, Policy NP/EN4 of the adopted Ascot, Sunninghill and
Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan and policy NR4 of the emerging Borough Local Plan Submission
Version

Buildings and trees within the site have been identified to have the potential to support bat roosts
and one bat roost has been confirmed. Further surveys therefore need to be carried out prior to the
determination of the application to confirm the presence/absence of bats and how bats would be
affected by the proposals. These surveys have not be submitted and therefore the application is
unacceptable in this respect.

Impact on other protected species and habitats is considered acceptable subject to conditions.

Surface Water Flooding

The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment to support the application. Whilst no in
principle concerns have been raised by the Lead Local Flood Authority, further information is
required relating to on-site infiltration testing, micro-drainage calculations and the basement
pumping stations before the application can be supported.

Other considerations

Development Brief

Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/H1 (Development Briefs) requires that development proposals
which include 10 or more dwellings on sites larger than 0.4 hectares shall be required to submit a

32



6.22

6.23

7.1

Development brief and to actively engage in consultation with the Parish Council and the
community as part of the design process prior to any planning application being submitted.
Furthermore, planning applications for developments which require a Development Brief must be
accompanied by a Statement of Community Consultation. The proposal has not been developed
in accordance with a development brief that has allowed the local community to engage in
meaningful consultation as part of the design process prior to the planning application being
submitted. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy NP/H1.

Affordable Housing

The application is for a development of more than 15 dwellings and therefore there is an
expectation in line with adopted policy HO3 for affordable housing provision. This is in line with the
revised NPPF which advises that affordable housing provision will not be required for
developments that are not major developments. The application includes very limited information
relating to affordable housing. Affordable housing is referred to in the covering letter submitted with
the application and on further email correspondence with the agent which states: ‘Given the nature
of the development on a very self-contained site which will involve fairly substantial ongoing
management and maintenance charges (basement car park, 24 hour concierge and maintenance
of extensive grounds ) we don't think it's realistic or viable to provide AH on site and consider it
more appropriate to make a on off-site contribution’. The provision of on-site housing has not been
explored fully in this case. Even if it were supported in principle that an off-site contribution were
more appropriate, it has not been suggested that the application were able to meet the 30%
requirement. The proposal has therefore inadequately addressed this policy requirement.

Housing Land Supply

Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will be a
presumption in favour of Sustainable Development and that housing applications should be
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development, and that
relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning
authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites. Following the
Regulation 19 consultation on the Submission Version of the Local Plan, the Council formally
submitted in January 2018. The Borough Local Plan sets out a stepped housing trajectory over the
plan period (2013-2033). As detailed in the supporting Housing Land Availability Assessment a five
year supply of deliverable housing sites can be demonstrated against this proposed stepped
trajectory.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The development is CIL liable, however as the application is being refused, no further discussion
of this matter is required.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties
51 occupiers were notified directly of the application. The planning officer posted a notice
advertising the application at the site on 18™ June 2018 and the application was advertised in the

Maidenhead & Windsor Advertisers on 14" June 2018.

2 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | The application has not been accompanied by a Development Brief and | See section
Statement of Community Involvement 6.21

33



2. | The address of the application is incorrect The address of
the application
was changed
early on in the
course of the
application and
further
neighbour
notification was
carried out

3. | The new access onto London Road would impact on traffic and highway | See section

safety 6.11

4. | The new access would require further tree removal See section
6.14 and 6.15

5. | The scale and bulk of the development is contrary to the Neighbourhood | See sections

Plan and out of character with the surrounding area and neighbouring 6.2-6.8
properties

6 | Block 1 will appear overbearing from the street scene See sections
6.2-6.8

Consultees
Where in the

Consultee Comment report this is
considered

Parish Council | Objections (summarised): See main report

- Name and address of the site was incorrect.

- no development brief had been provided, neither
had any public consultation been carried out

- Concerns about access onto London Road

- Out of character with the designated ‘Villas in a
Woodland’ setting.

- Loss of trees

- Contrary to Neighbourhood Plan policies

- Loss of Amenity, overlooking from balconies
particularly to Ballards from Block 3

- Loss of Green Space

LLFA Objection — further information required See section
6.20

Trees Objection — direct loss and harm to category A and B trees | See section

which would harm the character of the area 6.14-6.15

Ecology Further survey information required regarding bats

Highways The proposed means of access to the site is inadequate by | See sections

reasons of its location, alignment and visibility to serve the 6.11-6.13
proposed development with safety and convenience. The

development is contrary to The Royal Borough of Windsor

and Maidenhead'’s Local Plan Policy T5, DGL1.

Archaeology No objection subject to condition Noted

Environmental | No objection subject to informatives Noted

Protection

Thames Information for the developer regarding waste water Noted

Water

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

34



10.

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — plan and elevation drawings

RECOMMENDED REASONS FOR REFUSAL

The proposed development by reason of its general form, design, layout, scale, massing and height
of the proposed buildings and the extent of the new hard surfacing within the site would be out of
character and result in an erosion in the spacious character of this 'Villas in a Woodland Setting'
townscape and represents an overly dominant, intrusive and unsympathetic form of development.
As such, the proposal would be contrary to saved Policies H10, H11, DG1 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003, contrary
to policies NP/DG1, NP/DG2, NP/DG3, NP/EN2, NP/EN3 of the adopted Ascot, Sunninghill and
Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 2011-2026, contrary to policies SP2 and SP3 of the emerging
Borough Local Plan (submission version) (2013-2033) and Section 12 (Achieving well-designed
places) of the revised NPPF.

Apartment block 3, by reason of its height, proximity to the north boundary of the site and humber
of first and second floor windows and terrace in the rear elevation would result in loss of privacy
and overlooking (whether actual or perceived) to the neighbouring occupiers of Ballards. The
proposal would be contrary to saved Policies H10 and H11 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003) and contrary to policy
SP3 of the emerging Borough Local Plan (submission version) (2013-2033).

The scheme fails to adequately secure the protection of important trees which contribute positively
to the character and appearance of the area. The application is therefore contrary to policies N6,
DG1 and H11.

The proposed means of access to the site is inadequate by reasons of its location, alignment and
visibility to serve the proposed development safely and with convenience. The development is
contrary to The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead's Local Plan Policy T5, DG1 and
emerging policy IF2 set out in the Borough Local Plan Submission Version.

In the absence of a mechanism to secure 30% Affordable Housing the proposal fails to comply with
Paragraph 64 of the National Planning Policy Framework and policy H3 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead Adopted Local Plan and Policy HO3 of the Borough Local Plan 2013 -
2033 (Submission Version).

The proposal would have a significant effect in combination with other plans and projects in the
locality on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area [SPA] in the absence of any suitable
mitigation to overcome any such impact the proposal is contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework and the RBWM Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area SPD and Policy
NP/EN4 of the adopted Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan. The proposal
would also fail to comply with policy NR4 of the emerging Borough Local Plan (submission version)
(2013-2033).

The proposal has not been developed in accordance with a development brief that has allowed
the local community to engage in meaningful consultation as part of the design process prior to
the planning application being submitted, contrary to Policy NP/H1 of the Ascot, Sunninghill and
Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan.

It has not been demonstrated that the scheme would have an acceptable impact upon bats,

which are a protected species. The application has not demonstrated that it meets paragraph 175
of the NPPF, or that it complies with Policy NR3 of the Submission Version Borough Local Plan.

35



Ordnanca Surwey & Crown Gopyright 2017. All Aghts reserved. Licence number 100022432

36



Proposed site plan

37



Block 1 Proposed floor plans

FIRET FLOOR

SECONDFLOOR "

s [ —F IF
] PLANMING ISSUE

.
[N S . 1Y
aaaaaa
1 e | K]
d
l |
[1 e

AL OT DESIGHN

Timelase srevitaziure

GROUKD FLOOR




Block 1 Proposed elevations

HOLYATTE 30E

39

NOLFATIS INOUS

HOUYASTE 308

==l ff !

= i




Block 2 Proposed ground floor plan

d0OTd ANNOYD

et

1
! L

40



ed first floor plan

k 2 Propos

FIRST FLOOR

41



Block 2 Proposed second floor plan

I _?H,.‘NH.\I....HHH.WHHHu_.wﬂu.lﬂm.ll.w.l”_ﬂﬂ _ o
.|”.,|4_H.....|..|4|...|“.||||||.-.|W| L ﬁ _ .|.-||.|.|.|||Lmr-||wu.||||||ll|..||l.”__1.|u..

TERRACE TERRACE _ 'l
|

LI IR LN
g
W
'
&
g
| |8

NN
101N

| TERRACE

TERRACE
TERRACE

=5

S= |
=5

== I _ |
==

<

SECOND FLOOR

-
i
\



Block 2 Proposed elevations

RHLYHINS LML

B

1=
Lm
|

FEH T

N
g

BE
UH

e

% i

rmm— [P
. _il.l|llr ST
i
:._'a‘__-r_ T

43



Block 3 Proposed floor plans

—_—

. K
FIRST FLOOR Sy

SECOND FLOOR  “fire___.x™ pR—

| | _I

) PLANMING ISELE

el ze]

AZCOT DESIGHN
Timplass oichitaztura

GROUND FLOOR

44



Block 3 Proposed elevations

NOILVA3T3 Y34
— ;
NOILVAT13 INOHS

-

—— U |'l
= Q=ull .=

b~
HE

———]

" i

———M-A‘;;‘ﬂ il'lif““ s Eﬁl m i‘ B
. l

NOLLYA3T3 3QIS
| m 1
]
| L
|
|
NOILVYAI13 3AIS
|
=
g = =

00

= o
5

45



46

| <
{ 2

AHECET DESIEH ﬂlrllr-
LI Timalvn arnbHanbmn

Block 1 and 3 basement parking

.

@ i
||
|_E._|

|
B.



Block 2 basement parking

|||||||||

47

—
HILESTOHEY, LONDGN ROAD

ASCOT DESIGHN

Timalens archltechore




WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

17 October 2018 Item: 3
Application 18/01673/0UT
No.:
Location: Land To The Rear of 4 And 5 Claver Drive Ascot
Proposal: Outline application for access, layout and scale to be considered at this stage with all

other matters to be reserved for the construction of x14 apartments with associated
access and landscaping works.

Applicant: Mr Collett

Agent: Not Applicable

Parish/Ward:  Sunninghill And Ascot Parish/Sunninghill And South Ascot Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Jo Richards on 01628 682955 or at
jo.richards@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The application is for a block of 14 apartments within a heavily treed backland site. The proposed
development including the access road, parking area and apartment building, would fill a
considerable amount of the plot, encroaching into the RPAs of protected trees. It has not been
demonstrated that the development can be carried out without significant harm to these trees which
could ultimately lead to their loss. These trees form an important part of the character of the area
and would provide screening and softening of the proposed building. The loss of these trees would
be harmful to the verdant character of the area.

1.2 Furthermore, the proximity of the south-east flank elevation of the building to the group of trees
within the rear gardens of 4 and 5 Claver Drive, coupled with the differences in ground level, would
result in significant shading of this part of the building, including loss of light and outlook to habitable
windows which would be harmful to future occupiers of the building and, which in turn would result
in significant post-pruning pressures.

1.3 The application site lies within the 400m-5km buffer zone from the SPA, wherein proposals for
residential intensification are likely to have an effect on the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area. The applicants have failed to provide mitigation for harm to the SPA through the
introduction of new residential development.

1.4 Insufficient information has been submitted in relation to surface water drainage to satisfy the
requirements of the Lead Local Flood Authority.

15 The proposal is for a major housing development and in line with the updated NPPF (paragraph
63) must provide affordable housing. No such provision has been set out within the proposals either
on site or in the form of a commuted sum payment. The proposal is therefore contrary to paragraph
63 of the NPPF.

1.6 A Development Brief and Statement of Community Consultation have been submitted with the
application. However, it is not considered that these submissions have met the requirements of
Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/H1 which requires applicants to actively engage in consultation with
the Parish Council and the community as part of the design process prior to any planning
application being submitted.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

1. | The proposal fails to demonstrate that the construction of the proposed apartment
building, access road, parking area and retaining wall would not have a detrimental
impact on retained trees growing within and adjacent to the site. Furthermore, due to
the siting and scale of the proposed building in close proximity to trees shown to be
retained, the proposal is likely lead to pressure to significantly cut back and / or

48



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

remove these trees. The loss of these trees would have a detrimental impact on the
visual amenity of the area.

2. | In addition, it has not been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority that, due to the siting and scale of the proposed building, the retained trees
would not be detrimental to the living conditions of future occupiers of the
development resulting in loss of light and outlook.

3. | The proposal is likely to have a significant effect in combination with other plans and
projects in the locality on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area [SPA] as
designated under The Conservation (Natural Habitats) Regulations, and which is also
designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest [SSSI].

Insufficient information has been submitted with regards to surface water drainage.

ok

No affordable housing has been proposed. The application is classified as a major
development in line with the revised NPPF and therefore an element of affordable
housing is required.

6. | The submitted Development Brief and Statement of Community Consultation fail to
meet the requirements of Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/H1.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

¢ At the request of Clir Sharpe on the following grounds; that no development brief or
meaningful public consultation has been undertaken, concerns over access and parking,
impact on trees, impact on residential amenity, loss of garden space and conflict with the
Neighbourhood Plan.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located on the south side of London Road in Sunninghill, close to the
roundabout with Sunningdale Road. It sits behind, and would share the access with, the existing
flatted development ‘The Glen’ and detached dwelling, ‘Glen Cottage’. The majority of the site, in
which the building would be positioned, comprises parts of the rear gardens of 4 and 5 Claver
Drive and ‘Hocketts’ which is accessed via Oriental Road. The site is generally flat apart from the
eastern edge where it joins the retained gardens of these properties and where the land rises
steeply. The boundaries of the site are heavily treed.

The application site is within the built-up area of Sunninghill and is surrounded on three sides by
other residential development, The Glen, Glen Cottage and West Winds to the north, Claver Drive
to the east and Oriental Road to the south. Victory Field recreation ground lies to the west and is
within the Green Belt. The central part of the site, (the rear gardens of 4 and 5 Claver Drive) are
covered by an area Tree Preservation Order. A public footpath runs to the west of the site joining
London Road to 33 Oriental Road.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks outline planning permission for the construction of an apartment building
containing 14 units with associated access and parking. The access, layout and scale are matters
to be considered at this stage with appearance and landscaping to be reserved matters.

The building would comprise two-and-a-half storeys, with 5 apartments in both the ground and first
floors and 4 apartments in the roof space. The existing garage blocks would be demolished and
parking for occupiers of The Glen relocated within the site.

This application follows a previous planning application for 11x2-bed apartments, ref:
17/03056/0UT, which was refused on five grounds; impact on the character of the area, impact
on trees, lack of a Development Brief and Statement of Community Consultation, impact on the
SPA and insufficient information relating to surface water drainage.

Compared to the previously refused application, the current application proposes a more uniformly
shaped building positioned closer to northern boundary of the backland part of the site. The height
of the development has been increased from 9.7m to 11.5m albeit the flat crown roof has been

49



5.1

52

omitted from the scheme. The building has been sited closer to the trees within the garden of 4
Claver Drive and further away from the public footpath and Victory Field. Overall, the proposed
building would take up a smaller portion of land within the site.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections:- a material planning consideration
2. Achieving sustainable development

5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

8. Promoting healthy and safe communities

12. Achieving well-designed places

The Development Plan - Royal Borough Local Plan (Adopted 2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Local Plan ,
Issue : Compliance
Policy
Design in keeping with character of area DG1 Yes
Acceptable impact on appearance of area DG1, H10 H11 No
Acceptable impact when viewed from nearby H11 Yes
occupiers
Maintains acceptable level of privacy for nearby H11 Yes
residents
Maintains acceptable level of daylight and H11 NoO
sunlight for nearby occupiers
Sufficient parking space available P4 Yes
Q\rcec;ptable impact on trees important to the NG NoO
Complies with relevant polices of the Ascot, EN2, EN3,
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood H1, H2, DG1, No
Plan DG2, DG3

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version —a material planning consideration

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3
of area
Provision of high quality housing HO2, HO5
Natural Environment NR2, NR3, NR4, EP2, EP3, EP4
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1
Transport and parking IF2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been submitted
to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough Local Plan does
not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by publishing and
submitting the Borough Local Plan for independe6t examination the Council has formally confirmed



53

6.

its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the emerging Borough Local
Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should accord relevant policies
and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications taking account of the extent
to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies. Therefore, the weight afforded to each
policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and type of representation to that policy. This
is addressed in more details in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP2, SP3,
HO2, HO5, EP2, EP3, EP4, IF1 and IF2 in this case. Lesser weight should be accorded to Borough
Local Plan Submission Version policy NR2 due to the extent and nature of objections raised to it
by representations on the Borough Local Plan Submission Version. The above application is
considered to comply with the relevant policies listed within the Development Plan and those
Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which significant weight is to be accorded.

This document can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Other Local Strategies or Publications —a material planning consideration
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

o RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
) RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

6.2

6.3

e The principle of development;

) The impact on the character and appearance of the area, including trees;
o The impact on the living conditions of neighbours and future occupiers;

o Parking provision and highway implications;

o Ecological implications; and

) Other material considerations.

The principle of residential development

The site is located within the built-up area of Sunninghill, wherein the principle of residential
intensification is acceptable. Indeed the site is bordered by residential development on 3 sides and
it is considered that the development of this site within the settlement area would make an efficient
use of land.

However, it is a material consideration that planning permission was refused for the previous
application, ref: 17/03056/0UT for 11 x 2 bed apartments on grounds of impact on the character

of the area and the quality of the environment due to the siting, form and scale of the development.
It must be assessed whether the current application has overcome such concerns.

The impact on the character and appearance of the area

51



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Neighbourhood plan policy NP/DG1.1 states that development proposals should respond
positively to the local townscape. Development proposals should use the RBWM Townscape
Assessment report, and specifically its sections “Key Characteristics” and “Description”, to inform
the design approach in a planning application. The extent to which this is demonstrated in the
development proposals should determine whether the proposal is in keeping with the character of
an area.

Policy SP2 of the emerging Borough Local Plan states that ‘All new developments should contribute
to the places in which they are located.’ Furthermore, policy SP3 states that development proposals
should achieve various design principles, including but not limited to, respecting and enhancing the
local character and high quality townscapes and providing high quality soft and hard landscaping.
Significant weight can be given to these emerging policies at this time.

Principle of flatted development

The site lies within an area defined as a Victorian Village, however, the site is not really typical of
this character area as it comprises a backland plot to The Glen (a 1960'’s flatted development) and
properties within Claver Drive and Oriental Road, none of which are Victorian. With the exception
of The Glen, residential properties surrounding the site are predominantly detached or semi-
detached houses. Beechcroft Close to the north-east of the site contains 4-storey town houses.
Notwithstanding this, it is noted that guidance and opportunities for this character area include; to
retain important trees, including those in gardens and on tree lined roads and planning for new
trees to ensure continuity of tree cover and a diverse age structure. The principle of a flatted
development on the site is considered acceptable given the mix of dwelling types in the vicinity
including The Glen which is a flatted development of 16 units. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would meet the aims of Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/H2 which seeks to ensure that
there is a balanced mix of housing in the area. The density of the development at approximately
35 dph is not objected to in principle given the mix of development types in the surroundings and
the need to make an effective use of land as set out within the revised NPPF.

Layout and Scale

The ground levels within the application site are such that the proposed building would be
constructed on significantly lower ground level (approx. 8m) than the dwellinghouses to the east
in Claver Drive, also considering the set-back from this road the development would not be visible
from the street scene of Claver Drive. The building would also be situated on slightly lower ground
level than The Glen which occupies an elevated position to the east of the upward sloping driveway
off London Road. Furthermore, the set-back of the development from London Road is
approximately 85m and therefore the building would not be visible to London Road. To the west
of the application site is Victory Fields, an open playing field in the Green Belt. Due to gaps in the
screening along this boundary, the apartment building would be partly visible from the adjacent
public footpath and from Victory Fields.

The footprint of the development is sizable with a depth of approximately 23.5m and a width of
approximately 28m. Whilst it contains fewer apartments than The Glen, given that they are all
sizable two-bed apartments, the development would be larger than this existing flatted
development, however as stated above it would occupy a less prominent position. The proposed
apartment building is of a similar floor area to the previously refused scheme, but because it is a
more uniformly shaped building, it has a more compact layout leaving a greater amount of land
free from built form to the rear of the site. The height of the building is 11.5m, which, whilst taller
than the previously refused application, would maintain a ridge line as opposed to a flat-top roof
resulting in less bulk at roof level.

Taking into account the site area as a whole, including the land required to form the parking area
and extend the access drive, the proposed development, including both the large apartment
building and hard-surfacing for the driveway and parking area, would fill a considerable amount of
the plot. Having said this the scheme has been reduced considerably in footprint from the previous
scheme and would maintain sufficient gaps of separation to all neighbouring properties, being set

52



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

well-back from London Road and Claver Drive. Considering that the building would be situated in
a backland plot with significant gaps of separation to neighbouring buildings, it is considered that
the impact from the scale and layout of the building would be limited. The building would not be
visible from London Road, Claver Drive or Oriental Road. The building however would be visible
from the public footpath to the west and from Victory Field. The nearest part of the proposed
building to the public footpath is the north-west corner at 7m away, the main bulk and highest part
of the building would be set even further away from the public footpath. Given this is the only public
vantage point and the gap to the boundary would be sizable, it is concluded that proposed scale
of the building would not appear over-bearing when viewed from the surroundings.

External appearance is a matter to be considered at a reserved matters stage and is therefore not
to be assessed under this current application.

Impact on Trees

In addition to the above assessment, it also needs to be considered how the proposal would affect
the landscape character of the area. Policy N6 is designed to ensure a balanced approach to
preserving existing trees and new planting on development sites. However, where the contribution
of the trees to local amenity outweighs the justification for development, planning permission may
be refused.

It is considered that the trees on the site add significantly to the verdant character of the area. In
general the trees on this site have a higher value collectively than when considered as individuals.
The Tree Officer has advised that the survey provided appears to have only considered the trees
for their individual arboricultural value and not for their collective value and many of the trees
should have fallen within a higher category when their collective visual contribution to the area is
considered. Trees on the boundaries of the site provide a green backdrop and valuable screening
to the site when viewed from the public right of way, the adjacent properties and the recreation
ground to the south. As the majority of the trees are deciduous this screening will be significantly
decreased over winter.

The application includes a retaining wall to be constructed close to the retained trees on the south
eastern boundary of the site (within 4 Claver drive) and a new access driveway and parking bays
are proposed within the minimum root protection area of the mature Oak tree T4. It has not been
demonstrated that these works would not harm the well-being of these trees which are important
features in the character of the area.

Furthermore, the retained trees on the boundaries of the site could create significant concerns to
future occupiers. The shade assessment provided with the application would suggest that the
frontage and eastern side of the building would be particularly impacted. The additional shade from
the building as well as impact of the trees crown spreads and changes in level over the site should
also be taken into account. Concerns such as shade, falling debris, a desire for views over the
adjacent open space and fears that the trees may break or fall are likely to lead to pressure to
significantly cut back and/or remove trees that are shown to be retained and restrict the scope of
any new planting. The loss of these trees would have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity
of the area.

As stated above, the trees on site provide an important part of the character of the area. Indeed it
is considered that the site could hold a flatted development without appearing prominent or over-
bearing if it had been demonstrated that there would be no undue harm to these trees which could
soften and screen the proposed new development allowing it to blend in with the character of the
area.

In this case, the information submitted with the application has not demonstrated that these
important trees would not be harmed through the siting of the building, retaining wall and hard-
surfacing in close proximity to their root protection areas. Furthermore, the siting of the building so
close to the group of trees in the garden of 4 Claver Drive is likely to result in significant shading to
these properties and post-development pruning pressures. As such, it is concluded that the
proposal would be harmful to the character of the area due to the impact on mature trees which
are important amenity features in the wider area.

53



6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

The impact on living conditions of Neighbouring Occupiers

Existing occupiers

It should be noted that the previous application was not refused on grounds of impact on
neighbouring occupiers, meaning that the Planning Authority were satisfied with the application in
this respect. With regards to the current application, the building is considered to be situated
sufficiently far enough away from neighbouring dwellinghouses 4 and 5 Claver Drive to the east
and Glen Cottage to the north so as not to appear overbearing or result in any loss of light. Habitable
windows have been designed so that they are orientated away from neighbouring boundaries to
ensure there is no harmful loss of privacy. Whilst strong objections have been raised by the
occupiers of Glen Cottage a separation distance of 26m with the building angled away from the
common boundary would ensure an acceptable level of amenity for these neighbours. Whilst the
access road would be extended around the curtilage of Glen Cottage, it would not abut the
neighbouring property itself such that there would be a detrimental impact on living conditions
through noise disturbance. Therefore, no objections are raised with regard to impact on existing
neighbouring occupiers.

Future occupiers

As stated above, the eastern side of the building would be sited in close proximity to protected trees
within the garden of 4 Claver Drive. A shade diagram has been submitted with the application which
indicates that the front, side and rear facing windows of the flats on this side of the building would
be heavily shaded. Particularly concerning is the outlook from the only window of the second
bedroom in flats 4 and 9 which would directly face these trees. Also due to the differences in ground
level the shading is likely to be even greater than that shown. The proposal would therefore not
provide a sufficient level of amenity for the occupiers of the new apartments.

Parking and Highways

The application proposes to maintain the current vehicular access from London Road, with
alignment alterations to improve visibility to the east which would accommodate the minimum
required visibility splays. The application will increase the number of vehicle trips however this
would not be significant enough to present a severe impact on the local highway network.

The application also includes the provision for a pedestrian link from the site to the northern
footway on London Road which is acceptable.

The site is located within an area of poor accessibility therefore a minimum requirement of two
parking spaces per 2-bed unit is required. 28 spaces have been provided to serve the development
which is acceptable and a revised parking layout has been submitted which overcomes concerns
relating to the parking arrangement initially raised by the Highways Authority. The application seeks
to demolish a block of 20 garages for occupiers of The Glen and replace with 20 parking spaces
which is considered acceptable by the Highways Authority. Whilst 20 spaces would fall short of
current parking standards, it would be unreasonable for the Planning Authority to request additional
parking to that which The Glen currently has.

The cycle parking is insufficient but further information could be requested via condition if the
application were being approved.

Ecology/Thames Basin Heaths

The Ecologist is satisfied with the proposal with regard to impact on protected species and habitats
subject to conditions were the application to be recommended for approval.

The Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (the SPA) was designated in 2005 to protect
and manage the ecological structure and function of the area to sustain the nationally important

54



6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

breeding populations of three threatened bird species. The application site is located within two
kilometres from the closest part of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA), which
is protected by European and national legislation. This imposes requirements on the Local
Planning Authority to protect this sensitive area of natural/semi-natural habitat.

Although the Council has an adopted Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) known as
Allens’s Field, this only has a limited amount of remaining capacity. However this capacity has
already been safeguarded for the delivery of submission allocated sites in the BLPSV. Unplanned
development using up this capacity could result in sustainably located plan—led developments
being put at risk of not being implemented in a timely manner or not at all. To avoid this arising, the
Council (through a decision of Cabinet in June 2018) agreed that unplanned development of over
10 dwellings would not be able to rely on capacity at the Council's SANG at Allen’s Field and would
need to find alternative mitigation.

The Council is proactively progressing options to ensure that additional SANG comes forward
through to 2033 to assist in mitigating the impact of new windfall residential developments and
there are a number of opportunities currently available and the council is investigating them all in
consultation with Natural England. However, in the absence of available RBWM-provided SANG
capacity, developers must provide their own alternative mitigation in line with the requirements set
out by the Supplementary Planning Document Thames Basin Heaths SPA.(Part 1)

This application does not provide any form of acceptable mitigation in line with the Council’s SPD
Thames Basin Health’'s SPA and therefore it has not been demonstrated that the proposed
development would not have a significant impact in combination with other plans and projects in
the locality on the SPA. The proposal is therefore contrary to advice within the NPPF and the
RBWM Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area SPD, Policy NP/EN4 of the adopted Ascot,
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan and policy NR4 of the emerging Borough Local
Plan Submission Version.

Surface Water Flooding

The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy to support the
application. Concerns have been raised by the Lead Local Flood Authority and further information
is required relating to drainage of the northern part of the site, surface water run-off and impact of
the infiltration system on neighbouring structures before the application can be supported.

Other Material Considerations

Development Brief and public consultation

Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/H1 (Development Briefs) requires that development proposals
which include 10 or more dwellings on sites larger than 0.4 hectares shall be required to submit a
Development Brief and to actively engage in consultation with the Parish Council and the
community as part of the design process prior to any planning application being submitted.
Furthermore, planning applications for developments which require a Development Brief must be
accompanied by a Statement of Community Consultation.

Whilst a development brief and statement of community consultation were not one of the
documents submitted when the application was first validated, both documents were received part
way through the application on 17" July 2018. Appendix C and D of the Neighbourhood Plan sets
out all the relevant information that needs to be included. The submitted document includes details
regarding the sites location, surrounding development, analysis of the character of the area
including existing surrounding development, potential impact on trees and analysis of proposals
against Neighbourhood Plan policies.

The Statement of community involvement outlines how the applicant has communicated with the
local community in the lead up to the submission of the application including how the scheme has
been altered following on from the previously refused scheme. A meeting was held with the Parish
Council in Oct 2017 which informed the first application. Plans were also sent to the Neighbourhood
Planning Group and SPAE. Following refusal of the first application the Parish Council were

55



6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

7.1

contacted to arrange a second meeting. A meeting was declined but plans were sent in the post.
The public meeting was advertised on local facebook groups and through the Parish Council. The
document also sets out how the proposal has responded to comments from neighbours and the
Parish Council.

Clearly the development brief and statement of community consultation have not resulted in a
development which is considered acceptable in this case. Furthermore, objections raised to the
current application by the Parish Council, neighbouring occupiers and other interested parties
seem to contradict statements made in the applicant’s statement of community consultation.
Furthermore it is noted that no evidence has been provided of the outcome of consultation with
these parties, only with occupiers of The Glen who are supportive if the application.

Based on the foregoing, it is considered that the proposal does not fulfil the aims of Neighbourhood
Plan policy NP/H1 and the requirements of Appendix C and D of the Neighbourhood Plan.

It is noted that there is considerable support from the application from residents of The Glen,
primarily due to the improvements to the access and parking. This in itself does not outweigh the
concerns raised above. It is considered that the site can be re-developed in a way which would
improve access and parking arrangements and result in an acceptable impact on the character of
the area.

Affordable Housing

The application is for a development of more than 10 dwellings and therefore is classed as a major
development (see glossary to the revised NPPF). Paragraph 64 of the revised NPPF advises that
affordable housing provision should be expected for all major developments suggesting that an
element of affordable housing will be required for all major developments. The application does not
include any information relating to affordable housing and therefore inadequately addressed this
policy requirement.

Housing Land Supply

Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out that there will be a
presumption in favour of Sustainable Development and that housing applications should be
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development, and that
relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning
authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites. Following the
Regulation 19 consultation on the Submission Version of the Local Plan, the Council formally
submitted in January 2018. The Borough Local Plan sets out a stepped housing trajectory over the
plan period (2013-2033). As detailed in the supporting Housing Land Availability Assessment a five
year supply of deliverable housing sites can be demonstrated against this proposed stepped
trajectory.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The development is CIL liable, however as the application is being refused, no further discussion
of this matter is required.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

38 occupiers were notified directly of the application. The planning officer posted a notice
advertising the application at the site on 18" June 2018 and the application was advertised in the

Maidenhead & Windsor Advertisers on 215 June 2018.

11 letters were received supporting the application, summarised as:

56



Comment

Where in the

report this is
considered

1. | The application will remove the unsightly garages Noted
2. | The development will bring the existing access arrangements onto 6.19-6.22
London Road up to standards
3. | The proposal will integrate The Glen into Sunninghill Village. Noted
4. | A new pedestrian access will be provided onto the public footpath 6.20
through the site. Residents currently have to walk via the main road.
5. | There is currently insufficient parking in The Glen. Additional parking 20 parking
spaces will be provided to improve the situation. spaces are
proposed to
replace the 20
garages
6. | New road infrastructure will be provided 6.19-6.22
7. | The development will visually enhance the character of the area 6.2-6.16
8. | The development will result in additional planting 6.11-6.16
9. | The proposed development will fit in with the modern pavilion being 6.2-610
built in the park and the extended house Greenhays adjacent to the
entrance of the park.
10 | The Council’s pollarding of trees along the boundary with the site has 6.11-6.16
. taken away some of its character.
11 | The development would be an efficient use of land 6.2
12 | The building would not overlook the Glen 6.17-6.18
13 | Itis not clear whether residents of The Glen will have to cover cost to Not a material
maintain the new parking and access planning
consideration

4 letters were received objecting to the application (including one from the Ascot, Sunninghill and
Sunningdale Neighbourhood plan Delivery Group and one from SPAE), summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | The lease for The Glen flats requires residents who drive a van to park | The proposed
in the garage area. This has not be taken into account parking spaces
meet current
highway
standards
2. | The application has failed to overcome the previous reasons for refusal | See main report
3. | Impact on the openness of the Green Belt and to its visual amenity. 6.2-6.16
The building will be very visible from the adjacent footpath.
4. | The siting scale and bulk of development is harmful to the character of | 6.2 —6.16
the area
5. | Loss of trees and harm to retained trees, impact on living conditions of | 6.11-6.15, 6.18
future occupiers and post-development pruning pressures
6. | The application replies on the previous Development Brief and 6.29-6.34
Statement of Community Involvement. The Neighbourhood Delivery
Group were not invited to the consultation event. This is a new
application with an increased number of flats and therefore there
should be a new development brief.
7. | Impact on the SPA. 6.24-6.27
8 It is not clear whether residents of The Glen will have to cover cost to Not a material
maintain the new parking and access. This could affect responses to planning
the application. consideration
9. | Overlooking to West Main and Glen Cottage 6.18
10 | The proposal is an increase in density to the previous one 6.6
11 | Inaccuracies on the plans. Drawings include land from Glen Cottage Noted

57




12 | Insufficient parking and turning space. Highways comments not
accepted — access to London Road dangerous.

The Highways
Authority
requested a
revised parking
layout which
has been found
acceptable

13 | Overflow parking adjacent Glen Cottage represents a highway safety
concern

The proposal
has a suitable
level of parking.
Any ad hoc
parking that
causes
disruption will
be a civil matter
between
residents

14 | Noise and disturbance to Glen Cottage from cars

6.17

15 | Lighting will change the character of the area

Lighting could
be controlled by
condition if the
application were
being approved

16 | The developer has not engaged with Glen Cottage 6.29-6.34

17 | Impact on wildlife and biodiversity 6.23-6.25

18 | Damage to Glen Cottage garage Not a material
planning

consideration

Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
LLFA Objections. Further information required. See section
6.28
Parish Recommendation: Objections on the following grounds: See main report
Council (summarised)

- Concerns regarding development brief and consultation
statement

- Not appropriate that 30 flats would have access directly
onto Victory Field which is a public park within the Green
Belt.

- The swept path analysis for refuse collection suggested
that the movements were only possible safely if the car park
was not fully occupied.

- No disabled, visitor or trade vehicle parking,

- Impact on trees

- Impact on residential amenity

- Loss of garden space and greenness of the site

- To build flats would be contrary to the character of the area.

20




10.

- No environmental assessment was issued with the initial
application.

- Overdevelopment of the site in terms of density, footprint,
bulk and scale,

- The development would not contribute toward a mix of
houses, particularly when combined with recently approved
and currently processing applications for flats.

Highways No objection subject to conditions 6.19-6.22
Trees Objections — harm to protected trees, encroachment in 6.11-6.16
RPAs, inadequate information relating to replacement
planting
Ecology No objections on ecological grounds subject to condition 6.23
Natural No objections Noted
England

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — Plan and elevation drawings

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL

The proposal fails to demonstrate that the construction of the proposed apartment building, access
road, parking area and retaining wall would not have a detrimental impact on retained trees growing
within and adjacent to the site. Furthermore, due to the siting and scale of the proposed building
in close proximity to trees shown to be retained, the proposal is likely lead to pressure to
significantly cut back and / or remove these trees. The loss of these trees would have a detrimental
impact on the visual amenity of the area. Accordingly, the scheme fails to demonstrate adequate
protection of important trees which contribute to the character and appearance of the area, contrary
to policies NP/EN2.1, NP/EN2.2 and NP/EN3 of the Neighbourhood Plan, policies DG1 and N6 of
the Local Plan and policy NR2 of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

In addition, it has not been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority that,
due to the siting and scale of the proposed building, the retained trees would not be detrimental to
the living conditions of future occupiers of the development resulting in loss of light and outlook.
The proposal would be contrary to saved Policies H10 and H11 of the Royal Borough of Windsor
and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003) and contrary to
policy SP3 of the emerging Borough Local Plan (submission version) (2013-2033).

The proposal would have a significant effect in combination with other plans and projects in the
locality on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area [SPA] in the absence of any suitable
mitigation to overcome any such impact the proposal is contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework and the RBWM Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area SPD and Policy NP/EN4
of the adopted Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan. The proposal would also
fail to comply with policy NR4 of the emerging Borough Local Plan (submission version) (2013-
2033).

In the absence of sufficient information, it has not been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority that the proposed development would not exacerbate flood risk over its
lifetime accounting for the effects of climate change. Accordingly the proposal is contrary to
paragraph 103 of the NPPF.

In the absence of a mechanism to secure 30% Affordable Housing the proposal fails to comply with
Paragraphs 63 and 64 of the National Planning Policy Framework and policy H3 of the Royal

59



Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Adopted Local Plan and Policy HO3 of the Borough Local
Plan 2013 -2033 (Submission Version).

Policy NP/H1 of the adopted Neighbourhood Plan requires development proposals of 10 or more
dwellings on sites larger than 0.4 hectares to submit a Development Brief and to actively engage
in consultation with the Parish Council and the community as part of the design process prior to
any planning application being submitted. In addition, policy NP/H1.2 requires planning
applications for developments which require a Development Brief to be accompanied by a
Statement of Community Consultation. The submitted Development Brief and Statement of
Community Consultation do not fulfil the requirements of policies NP/H1 and NP/H1.2 of the
Neighbourhood Plan.

60



61



Proposed site plan (Part 1 of 2)

fa"

[

s
2
&
o

—\lf

FOOTPRMT MCREASED AR 290
PARIHNG AMEMDED AR 030
AMENRITY SPACE SHOMWN AR 5.0
PARKING AMENDED AR A

ANDREW RILEY

ANDREW M ARK BILErSOaall C0mM
a3 815 2

]
FROUECT: FECFOSED DEVELORWEN
AT rE
CRMWING TILE:
CRMWING M
SCALE:
D AT 200

STATLE: e

62



Proposed site plan (Part 2 of 2)

ar

DESCEPTION

PARKING AMEN
PARKING ARER
PARKING AREr

ANDRE

AHDREW.MS
re3eisa
PFROUECT:

CRAWNG TILE

CRAWING Nk

63



Proposed floor plans

i

SECOND FLOOR

64



Proposed front and rear elevations

= =

= =

0 =

= |=d

SOUTHWEST ELEVATION

65




Proposed side elevations

NOILWAIT3 LSYIHLNOS

NOILVAT T3 LSAIMHLHON

66



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

17 October 2018 ltem: 4

Application 18/02000/VAR

No.:

Location: Former The Little House Charters Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9QF

Proposal: Variation of condition 14 (rooflights) 15 (approved plans) under (Section 73) of
application 17/01066/VAR to amend rooflights and substitute approved drawing
numbers FD16-1361-P135A and FD16-1361-P140A with drawing numbers FD16-
1361-P135B and FD16-1361-P140B for the redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3
bedroom apartments under application 15/03090 (allowed on appeal).

Applicant: Kebbell Homes Ltd

Agent: Christopher Pickering

Parish/Ward:  Sunningdale Parish/Sunningdale Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at

adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

1.3

3.1

SUMMARY

This application was deferred at the last Windsor Rural Development Management Panel meeting
to allow members to carry out a site visit which took place on 26" September 2018. The site visit
was conducted from the application site itself and from the neighbouring property Cliveden House.
The applicant has also submitted amended plans showing the first floor bathroom window in the
east elevation to be obscure glazed and further detailed information regarding the proposed
replacement landscaping has also been submitted. The report as previously presented is as below.

The proposed changes would not have a detrimental impact on the design quality of the
development and no harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the area.

The proposed changes and the removal of condition 14 would not result in a loss of amenity to
neighbouring properties due to the height of the roof lights above the finished floor level within the
roof and the angle of the roof lights.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Head of Planning:

1. | To grant planning permission on the satisfactory completion of a deed of variation
to secure SAMM and SANG contributions to mitigate against the likely impact on the
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area as previously secured under
applications 15/03090 and 17/01066 and with the conditions listed in section 10 of
this report.

2. | To refuse planning permission if an undertaking to secure the required deed of
variation is not satisfactorily progressed as the proposed development would not
provide mitigation for the likely impacts on the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

¢ The Council's Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site is located on the northeast side of Charters Road almost opposite the junction with
Sunning Avenue. The site formerly accommodated a 1% storey single family dwelling, with a
detached garage and outbuilding. The site measures 0.262 hectares and is accessed by a driveway
positioned opposite Sunning Avenue. Work has commenced on site and is at an advanced stage.

67



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

5.

There are trees along the boundaries of the site including the front boundary. The site is subject to
an Area Tree Preservation Order (No 9 of 1984).

The site lies within the excluded settlement of Sunningdale and its boundaries are surrounded by
residential houses with a property on the opposite side of Charters Road being subdivided into
flats. The site is within the townscape area described as ‘Leafy Residential Suburb’.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application has been submitted to vary conditions 14 (roof lights) and 15 (approved plans) to
allow for the roof lights to have clear rather than obscure glazing. The roof lights have also been
reduced in scale and set further from the edge of the roof.

Ref. Description Decision and Date
03/84272 Erection of ten 2-bed apartments with associated Refused 06/01/04
parking and landscaping following demolition of existing | Appeal dismissed
dwelling
04/84958 Erection of 8 x 2 bedroom flats following demolition of Withdrawn 04/08/04
existing dwelling (revision of 03/84272).
12/00325 Construction of two detached houses and garages with | Approved 03.04.2012
access and landscaping following demolition of existing
house and garage
12/01490 Erection of 6 x 3 bedroom flats together with garages
and a parking court following demolition of the existing Refused 20.07.2012
building Appeal dismissed
Appeal A Erection of 6 x 3-bedoom flats with garages and a Refused 28.5.2015.
12/01490 parking court following demolition of existing. Appeal dismissed.
Appeal B Erection of 6 x 3 bedroom flats together with basement | Refused 03.10.2012
12/02720 parking following demolition of the existing building Appeal allowed
14/00118 Erection of 4 semi-detached dwellings with basements | Approved 20.7.14
and associated amenity space following the demolition
of the existing.
14/01846/FULL Construction of 4 x semi-detached dwellings with Refused 21.8.2014.
garages and associated amenity space. Appeal allowed 27.4.2015
14/02971/FULL Construction of 4 x semi-detached dwellings with Refused 11.11.2014
garages and associated amenity space. Appeal withdrawn.
15/03090/FULL Redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3 bedroom Refused 25.01.2016.
apartments Appeal allowed 28.10.2016.
16/01680/FULL Erection of 6 x 3 bed apartments with basement Approved 02.08.2016
parking.
17/00767/VAR Variation to planning permission 12/02720/FULL Approved 25.07.2017
without complying with Condition 7 [Tree protection
details] and Condition 16 [Landscaping]
17/01066/VAR Redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3 bedroom Approved 07.08.2017
apartments under planning permission 15/03090
(allowed on appeal) without complying with condition 2
(approved plans) to substitute approved drawings
18/00862/VAR Variation of Condition 15 (under Section 73) under Withdrawn 18.05.2018
17/01066/VAR [for the redevelopment of site to provide
6 x 3 bedroom apartments under planning permission
15/03090 (allowed on appeal) without complying with
condition 2 (approved plans) to substitute approved
drawings] to substitute plans approved with amended
plans.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

68




51

5.2

5.3

National Planning Policy Framework Sections 2 (Achieving sustainable development), 5
(Delivering a sufficient supply of homes), 8 (Promoting healthy and safe communities), 9
(Promoting sustainable transport), 12 (Achieving well-designed places) and 14 (Meeting the
challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change).

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Highways and

Design/character Parking Trees
Local Plan DG1, H10, H11 P4, T5 N6
Ascot Sunninghill NP/EN4, NP/H2, NP/T1, NP/T2 NP/EN2, NP/EN3

and Sunningdale NP/H3, NP/DG1,

Neighbourhood NP/DG2, NP/DG3,
Plan NP/DG5, NP/T1,

NP/T2

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3
of area
Sustainable Transport IF2
Trees NR2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been submitted
to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough Local Plan does
not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by publishing and
submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has formally confirmed
its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the emerging Borough Local
Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should accord relevant policies
and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications taking account of the extent
to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies. Therefore, the weight afforded to each
policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and type of representation to that policy. This
is addressed in more details in the assessment below.

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies in this
case. The above application is considered to comply with the relevant policies listed within the
Development Plan and those Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies to which significant
weight is to be accorded.

This document can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Supplementary planning documents
Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

69



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

o RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
o RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

nhg

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Impact on the character and appearance of the area
ii Impact on neighbours

Impact of the character of the area

Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended) (this variation application)
specifically excludes the reconsideration of issues other than those covered by the conditions that
are subject of this application.

The application proposes to vary conditions 14 (roof lights) and 15 (approved plans) of permission
17/01066/VAR (which in turn varied 15/03090/FULL) to alter the position and size of the roof lights
within the side elevations of the building and allow for them to be clearly glazed and opening rather
than obscurely glazed and fixed shut as currently required by condition 14. The roof lights would
be reduced in size and are consequently set further from the edge of the roof. No additional roof
lights are proposed. The changes to the roof lights would not have a significant impact on the
overall appearance of the building and would not result in the design quality of the development
being diminished as required by paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework. No
harm would therefore be caused to the character and appearance of the area.

Impact on neighbours

There is substantial planning history on this site. An application in 2012 (12/02720/FULL) for a
similar scheme was allowed at appeal. The Planning Inspector conditioned as part of this approval
for the side facing bathroom windows to be obscurely glazed in order to protect the privacy of
neighbours; there was no requirement for the windows to be fixed shut. Other side facing rooms
within the first floor serving dining rooms, kitchens and bedrooms were however not required to be
obscurely glazed. A similar permission was then granted in 2016 (16/01680/FULL) and a similar
condition was imposed requiring first floor side facing bathroom windows to be obscurely glazed
and this time fixed shut, however, as with the 2012 application the same requirement was not
imposed on other side facing windows which served bedrooms and dining rooms.

Following the outcome of the 2016 application the appeal for 15/03090 (the application being varied
under the current application) was decided. The Planning Inspector allowed the appeal and did not
impose any conditions in relation to side facing windows, citing the separation, screening and the
use of the rooms on the side elevation as sufficient to prevent overlooking. 17/01066 which was a
variation to 15/03090 did not require ground or first floor side windows to be obscurely glazed,
however, a condition was added at the request of the Windsor Rural Area Development
Management Panel requiring all roof lights in the side elevations (which had increased in size) to
be non-opening and fitted with obscure glass. It should be noted that another permission 17/00767
which is a variation of 12/02720 has also recently been approved and this allowed the developer
to remove some of the trees which form part of the boundary screening, however, replacement
planting was agreed and as it was a variation to the 2012 application the condition to obscurely
glaze the side facing bathroom windows was re-imposed; It is understood that this permission is
no longer being implemented.

70



6.6

6.7

7.1

This application returns the roof lights to a size similar to those approved under the original
application (15/03090), however, also sets them further from the edge of the roof and therefore
further above the internal floor levels of the rooms within the roof. Additional plans have been
submitted which show the internal floor levels within the roof rooms and show that the bottom of
the roof lights would be 1.859m (approx. 6 foot) above this floor level. Given this height and the
fact that the roof lights are angled upwards it is considered that the roof lights would not easily allow
views into the neighbouring properties and would not have a significant impact on the amenity of
neighbours.

Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will be
a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that
housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of
deliverable housing sites. Following the Regulation 19 consultation on the Submission Version of
the Local Plan, the Council formally submitted in January 2018. The Borough Local Plan sets out
a stepped housing trajectory over the plan period (2013-2033). As detailed in the supporting
Housing Land Availability Assessment a five year supply of deliverable housing sites can be
demonstrated against this proposed stepped trajectory.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

There is no increase in floor space from 17/01066/VAR and 15/03090/FULL and as such the
development is not CIL liable.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

14 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 23.07.2018

2 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the report this is

Comment .
considered

1. | RBWM has requested comments from interested N/A — A minimum of 28 days has
parties by the 16" August but the yellow planning been given to all consultees and
application notice requests comments by the 15" interested parties in which to
August. comment on the application.

2. | The Velux windows have already been inserted into The application is retrospective —
the second floor. any works undertaken that have

not or are not granted planning
permission may be subject to
enforcement action.

3. | Concerns have been raised that the development will See paragraphs 6.4 to 6.6
result in a loss of privacy to neighbouring properties.

Other consultees

71



10.

Where in the

Consultee Comment report this is
considered

Highways The proposed variation raises no highway concerns. N/A

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — Approved and proposed plans

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED REASONS

The development shall be constructed externally using the materials approved under conditions
application 17/02592/CONDIT unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1, H10, H11.
NP/DG3

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree shall be undertaken in accordance
with the Arboricultural Method Statement Rev B dated 13-8-2015 submitted with 15/03090 and tree
protection plan KEB 18037-03F and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus
materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced
in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees that contribute to the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy - Local
Plan N6 and Neighbourhood Plan NP/EN2

Hard and soft landscaping works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the details
approved under conditions application 17/02592/CONDIT prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with a programme agreed with the local planning authority. Any
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of similar size and species.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. This detail is required prior to
commencement because the landscaping should be considered in the overall design of the
scheme. Relevant Policy - N6.

No part of the development shall be occupied until a refuse bin storage area and recycling facilities
have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be kept available for use in association
with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow it to be
serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway safety
and to ensure the sustainability of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5, DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities have
been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. These facilities shall thereafter be kept available for the parking of
cycles in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7, DG1

No entrance gates shall be installed unless they are set back a minimum distance of at least five
metres from the highway boundary or seven metres from the nearside edge of the carriageway of
the adjoining highway and hung so that the gates can only open inwards.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5, DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking spaces have been provided in
accordance with the approved drawing. The spaces shall be retained for parking in association with



10

11

12

13

the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1 and Neighbourhood Plan NP/T1

No part of the development shall be occupied until the access has been constructed in accordance
with the approved drawing. The access shall thereafter be retained.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. Relevant Policy - T5.

The garages hereby permitted shall be kept available at all times for the parking of motor vehicles
by the occupants of the apartments and for no other purpose.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the construction management statement
approved under conditions application 17/02592/CONDIT. The approved Statement shall be
adhered to throughout the construction period.

Reason In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local Plan
T5.

The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the revised written scheme of
investigation for a programme of archaeological work (prepared by Thames Valley Archaeological
Services) dated 24th February 2016 - Ref 16e21ra , approved under condition application
16/00317/CONDIT. The agreed programme of archaeological work must be completed as
evidenced by a report on the results, in order for the condition to be fully discharged.

Reason: The site lies within an area of archaeological potential, specifically relating to Roman
remains. The Condition will ensure the satisfactory mitigation of the impact of development and to
record any surviving remains so as to advance our understanding of their significance in
accordance with national and local plan policy ARCH 2.

The hard surfaces shall be made of porous materials and retained thereafter or provision shall be
made and retained thereafter to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous
area or surface within the curtilage of the property.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and pollution and increase the level of sustainability of the
development and to comply with Requirement 5 of the Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead
Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning Document.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

73



Appendix A—Site location plan and site layout

Site location plan

Chelea Hous=

74



Appendix B—Approved and proposed plan and elevation drawings

Right hand flank elevation for 18/02000

/.

75

Right Flank Blevation



Right hand flank elevation for 17/01066

76



Right hand flank elevation for 15/03090

77

Right Flank Elevation



Left hand flank elevation for 18/02000

= — =

/8

Left Flank Elevation



Left hand flank elevation for 17/01066

1
-

.
i
="
o

“ 0 o
I L O

|
]
—
]

|

|
T
) |

=

]

T

79




Left hand flank elevation for 15/03090

80

Left Flank Elevation



Second floor Velux plan

4Bz Jo 2un

SMOPUIA
XN|2 A J00|4 PUODSS

—_— =& W
19N 100k pucoag

81



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR RURAL

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Appeal Decision Report g 2
=]
7 September 2018 - 8 October 2018 =
3
2 :
2 | Royal Borough
2 | of Windsor &
z Maidenhead
18/60079/REF  Planning Ref.: 17/03331/FULL  Plns Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/18/
3196428

Mr Ashton Hawthorne c/lo Agent: Mr Gavin Boby G B Planning Permissions Ltd 32 St
Leonards Road Horfield Bristol BS7 8SH

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse

Construction of x1 dwelling following demolition of the existing single storey extension,
conservatory and part demolition of the existing garage at 1 Kinross Avenue

1 Kinross Avenue Ascot SL5 9EP

Allowed Decision Date: 28 September 2018

It was considered that the distinctiveness of the estate had been previously compromised by
additions and that the sites existing single storey side extension unbalances the terraces and
as such the proposal would be more harmonious and have a positive impact on the terrace
and the wider area. Additional comment is made as no direction from the council for standards
with regards to the ratio of amenity space has been given and as such this does not form a
sufficient reason for refusal.

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

18/60093/REF 18/00790/FULL Plns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/18/

3206645

Mr And Mrs N And M Chohan And Bains c/o Agent: Miss Michaela Mercer Mercer Planning
Consultants Ltd 22 Tanglewood Close Pyrford Woking Surrey GU22 8LG

Delegated

Two storey front, and rear extensions, with a new raised roof to provide accommodation within
the roof space, and roof over the existing single storey garage to provide first floor
accommodation with the insertion of three flat boxed dormers to the rear. Erection of a
detached garage to the front. New front boundary treatment consisting of automatically
opening gates, new brick piers and metal railings.

19 Llanvair Drive Ascot SL5 9HS
Dismissed

Planning Ref.:

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Decision Date: 2 October 2018

The proposed development includes various extensions and their scale would cumulatively
subsume the host property rather than be subservient additions. The siting of the proposed
garage adjacent to the front boundary would result in a visually prominent built form of
development within the front garden. This physical enclosure of the front garden by railings
and gates would contrast with mainly the verdant or unenclosed boundaries of other dwellings
fronting the roads. Accordingly, it is concluded that the proposed development would cause
unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the host property and the streetscene
and, as such, it would conflict with Policies DG1, H14 and N6 of the Royal Borough of Windsor
and Maidenhead Local Plan (incorporating Alterations) and Policies NP/DG1, NP/DG2,
NP/DG3 and NP/EN2 of the Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan.
Amongst other matters, these policies require development to be of a high quality design which
responds positively to the local townscape and integrates with the local surroundings.

83



WINDSOR RURAL

Planning Appeals Received

7 September 2018 - 8 October 2018

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you can do so on the Planning
Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use the Plns reference number. If you do
not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol,

BS1 6PN

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Sunninghill And Ascot Parish

18/60109/REF Planning Ref.:  18/01692/TPO Pins Ref.: APP/TPO/T0355/
6957

12 September 2018 Comments Due: 24 October 2018

Refusal Appeal Type: Hearing

T1 Sweet Chestnut: Crown reduction by 1.5 - 2.5m and height reduction by 2 - 3m
Burwood House Ravensdale Road Ascot SL5 9HL

Mr Chris Wright c/o Agent: Mr Patrick Stileman Forbes-Laird Arboricultural Consultancy
Limited Dendron House 74 Barford Road Blunham Bedford MK44 3ND

Sunningdale Parish

18/60112/PRPA Planning Ref.:  18/01991/TPO Pins Ref.: APP/TPO/T0355/
7003

3 October 2018 Comments Due: Not Applicable

Part Refusal/Part Approval Appeal Type: Fast-track

(T1) English Oak - reduce and re-shape by 1.5m overall.

Halfpenny House 10 Halfpenny Lane Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0EQ

Mr Woolner c/lo Agent: Mr Paul Warrener Branch Management 110 Bagshot Green Bagshot
Surrey GU19 5JT

84


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Applications (decision)
	171018WRural

	5 Essential Monitoring Reports (monitoring)

